MINUTES SUMNER COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APRIL 16, 2012

The Board of County Commissioners of Sumner County, Tennessee met in regular session on Monday, April16, 2012, in the Commission Chambers of the Sumner County Administration Building in Gallatin, Tennessee at 7:00 p.m. Present and presiding was the Chairman Merrol Hyde. Also present were the County Clerk Bill Kemp and County Law Director Leah Dennen and the following Commissioners to wit:

Mike Akins	Ben Harris	Baker Ring
Paul Decker	Merrol N. Hyde	David Satterfield
Paul D. Freels	David Kimbrough	Jo Skidmore
Frank E. Freels	Trisha LeMarbre	Jerry F. Stone
Billy Geminden	Joe C. Matthews	Paige Brown Strong
Paul Goode	Kirk Moser	Moe Taylor
Steve Graves	Bob Pospisil	Jim Vaughn
Michael Guthrie	·	-

Having a duly constituted quorum, the meeting was opened in due process by Sheriff Sonny Weatherford. Chairman Hyde noted that with twenty-two members seated, a simple majority would be by thirteen votes; and that matters requiring a two-thirds vote would be by sixteen votes during this session. Commissioners Chris Hughes and Shawn Utley were not present for the meeting.

The Invocation was led by Pastor John McLendon, GodWhy Church in Hendersonville.

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the County Clerk, Bill Kemp.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Commissioner Skidmore moved, and was duly seconded by Commissioner Matthews, to adopt the agenda. The Commission approved the agenda by unanimous voice vote of the body.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes for the meeting of this body held on March 19, 2012, and recorded in the office of the Clerk, Bill Kemp, were approved by voice vote after Commissioner Frank Freels made the motion, seconded by Commissioner Taylor.

RECOGNITION OF THE PUBLIC

Chairman Hyde opened the floor to allow the public to speak concerning any matter on the agenda. With no one wishing to speak, recognition of the public was closed.

REPORT OF THE CHAIR

Chairman Hyde thanked Commissioner Decker for serving as Commission Chairman last month during his absence due to illness.

PUBLIC HEARING

Chairman Hyde directed Clerk Kemp to read the following notice into the record:

There will be a public hearing before the Sumner County Commission on April 16, 2012, at 7:00 p.m. to discuss and vote on the new 2012 FEMA Flood Maps. This meeting will be held in the Commission Chambers located in the Sumner County Administration Building, 355 N. Belvedere Drive, Gallatin, TN.

A copy of these flood maps are located in the Sumner County Construction and Development Office which is located in Room 202 in the Sumner County Administration Building, 355 N. Belvedere Drive, Gallatin, TN.

Anyone having an interest, desiring to comment or ask questions concerning this request to attend this meeting or call the Sumner County Construction and Development Office at (615) 452-1467.

Chairman Hyde declared the public hearing open for anyone wishing to speak. With no one indicating a desire to speak on the matter, Chairman Hyde declared the public hearing closed.

Chairman Hyde introduced the following resolution:

ARTICLE X

1201-01 SUMNER COUNTY FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION PROVISIONS

A RESOLUTION ADOPTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE SUMNER COUNTY, TENNESSEE REGIONAL ZONING RESOLUTION REGULATING DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF SUMNER COUNTY, TENNESSEE, TO MINIMIZE DANGER TO LIFE AND PROPERTY DUE TO FLOODING, AND TO MAINTAIN ELIGIBILITY FOR PARTICIPATION IN THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM.

1. <u>STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDINGS OF FACT, PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVES</u>

1.1 Statutory Authorization

The Legislature of the State of Tennessee has in Sections 13-7-101 through 13-7-115, <u>Tennessee Code Annotated</u>, delegated the responsibility to the county legislative body to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry. Therefore, the Sumner County, Tennessee, County Executive and County Commission, do resolve as follows:

1.2 Findings of Fact

- The Sumner County, Tennessee, County Executive and its Legislative Body wish to maintain eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and in order to do so must meet the NFIP regulations found in Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Ch. 1, Section 60.3.
- 2. Areas of Sumner County, Tennessee are subject to periodic inundation which could result in loss of life and property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety and general welfare.
- 3. Flood losses are caused by the cumulative effect of obstructions in floodplains, causing increases in flood heights and velocities; by uses in flood hazard areas which are vulnerable to floods; or construction which is inadequately elevated, floodproofed, or otherwise unprotected from flood damages.

1.3 Statement of Purpose

It is the purpose of this Resolution to promote the public health, safety and general welfare and to minimize public and private losses due to flood conditions in specific areas. This Resolution is designed to:

- 1. Restrict or prohibit uses which are vulnerable to flooding or erosion hazards, or which result in damaging increases in erosion, flood heights, or velocities;
- 2. Require that uses vulnerable to floods, including community facilities, be protected against flood damage at the time of initial construction;
- 3. Control the alteration of natural floodplains, stream channels, and natural protective barriers which are involved in the accommodation of floodwaters;
- 4. Control filling, grading, dredging and other development which may increase flood damage or erosion;
- 5. Prevent or regulate the construction of flood barriers which will unnaturally divert flood waters or which may increase flood hazards to other lands.

1.4 Objectives

The objectives of this Resolution are:

- 1. To protect human life, health, safety and property;
- 2. To minimize expenditure of public funds for costly flood control projects;
- 3. To minimize the need for rescue and relief efforts associated with flooding and generally undertaken at the expense of the general public;
- 4. To minimize prolonged business interruptions;
- To minimize damage to public facilities and utilities such as water and gas mains, electric, telephone and sewer lines, streets and bridges located in flood prone areas;
- 6. To help maintain a stable tax base by providing for the sound use and development of flood prone areas to minimize blight in flood areas;
- 7. To ensure that potential homebuyers are notified that property is in a flood prone area:
- 8. To **maintain** eligibility for participation in the NFIP.

2. **DEFINITIONS**

Unless specifically defined below, words or phrases used in this Resolution shall be interpreted as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this Resolution its most reasonable application given its stated purpose and objectives.

<u>"Accessory Structure"</u> means a subordinate structure to the principal structure on the same lot and, for the purpose of this Resolution, shall conform to the following:

- (1) Accessory structures shall only be used for parking of vehicles and storage.
- (2) Accessory structures shall be designed to have low flood damage potential.
- (3) Accessory structures shall be constructed and placed on the building site so as to offer the minimum resistance to the flow of floodwaters.
- (4) Accessory structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, and lateral movement, which otherwise may result in damage to other structures.
- (5) Utilities and service facilities such as electrical and heating equipment shall be elevated or otherwise protected from intrusion of floodwaters.

<u>"Act"</u> means the statutes authorizing the National Flood Insurance Program that are incorporated in 42 U.S.C. 4001-4128.

"Addition (to an existing building)" means any walled and roofed expansion to the perimeter or height of a building.

<u>"Appeal"</u> means a request for a review of the local enforcement officer's interpretation of any provision of this Resolution or a request for a variance.

"Area of Shallow Flooding" means a designated AO or AH Zone on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with one (1) percent or greater annual chance of flooding to an average depth of one to three feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate; and where velocity flow may be evident. Such flooding is characterized by ponding or sheet flow.

<u>"Area of Special Flood-Related Erosion Hazard"</u> is the land within a community which is most likely to be subject to severe flood-related erosion losses. The area may be designated as Zone E, on the Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM). After the detailed evaluation of the special flood-related erosion hazard area in preparation for publication of the FIRM, Zone E may be further refined.

"Area of Special Flood Hazard" see "Special Flood Hazard Area".

"Base Flood" means the flood having a one (1) percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. This term is also referred to as the 100-year flood or the one (1) percent annual chance flood.

<u>"Basement"</u> means any portion of a building having its floor subgrade (below ground level) on all sides.

<u>"Breakaway Wall"</u> means a wall that is not part of the structural support of the building and is intended through its design and construction to collapse under specific lateral loading forces, without causing damage to the elevated portion of the building or supporting foundation system.

"Building" see "Structure".

<u>"Development"</u> means any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not limited to, buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavating, drilling operations, or storage of equipment or materials.

<u>"Elevated Building"</u> means a non-basement building built to have the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area elevated above the ground level by means of solid foundation perimeter walls with openings sufficient to facilitate the unimpeded movement of floodwater, pilings, columns, piers, or shear walls adequately anchored so as not to impair the structural integrity of the building during a base flood event.

- <u>"Emergency Flood Insurance Program"</u> or <u>"Emergency Program"</u> means the program as implemented on an emergency basis in accordance with Section 1336 of the Act. It is intended as a program to provide a first layer amount of insurance on all insurable structures before the effective date of the initial FIRM.
- <u>"Erosion"</u> means the process of the gradual wearing away of land masses. This peril is not "per se" covered under the Program.
- <u>"Exception"</u> means a waiver from the provisions of this Resolution which relieves the applicant from the requirements of a rule, regulation, order or other determination made or issued pursuant to this Resolution.
- <u>"Existing Construction"</u> means any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced before the effective date of the initial floodplain management code or resolution adopted by the community as a basis for that community's participation in the NFIP.
- <u>"Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision"</u> means a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including, at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed before the effective date of the first floodplain management code or resolution adopted by the community as a basis for that community's participation in the NFIP.
- "Existing Structures" see "Existing Construction".
- <u>"Expansion to an Existing Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision"</u> means the preparation of additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads).
- <u>"Flood" or "Flooding"</u> means a general and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of normally dry land areas from:
 - (1) The overflow of inland or tidal waters.
 - (2) The unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source.
- <u>"Flood Elevation Determination"</u> means a determination by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) of the water surface elevations of the base flood, that is, the flood level that has a one percent or greater chance of occurrence in any given year.
- <u>"Flood Elevation Study" means</u> an examination, evaluation and determination of flood hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations, or an examination, evaluation and determination of mudslide (i.e., mudflow) or flood-related erosion hazards.
- "Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM)" means an official map of a community, issued by FEMA, where the boundaries of areas of special flood hazard have been designated as Zone A.
- "Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM)" means an official map of a community, issued by FEMA, delineating the areas of special flood hazard or the risk premium zones applicable to the community.
- <u>"Flood Insurance Study"</u> is the official report provided by FEMA, evaluating flood hazards and containing flood profiles and water surface elevation of the base flood.
- <u>"Floodplain"</u> or <u>"Flood Prone Area"</u> means any land area susceptible to being inundated by water from any source (see definition of "Flood" or "Flooding").
- <u>"Floodplain Management"</u> means the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood damage, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works and floodplain management regulations.
- <u>"Flood Protection System"</u> means those physical structural works for which funds have been authorized, appropriated, and expended and which have been constructed specifically to modify flooding in order to reduce the extent of the area within a community subject to a "special flood hazard" and the extent of the depths of associated flooding. Such a system typically includes hurricane tidal barriers, dams, reservoirs, levees or dikes. These specialized

flood modifying works are those constructed in conformance with sound engineering standards.

- <u>"Floodproofing"</u> means any combination of structural and nonstructural additions, changes, or adjustments to structures which reduce or eliminate flood damage to real estate or improved real property, water and sanitary facilities and structures and their contents.
- "Flood-Related Erosion" means the collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or other body of water as a result of undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding anticipated cyclical levels or suddenly caused by an unusually high water level in a natural body of water, accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unanticipated force of nature, such as a flash flood, or by some similarly unusual and unforeseeable event which results in flooding.
- <u>"Flood-Related Erosion Area"</u> or <u>"Flood-Related Erosion Prone Area"</u> means a land area adjoining the shore of a lake or other body of water, which due to the composition of the shoreline or bank and high water levels or wind-driven currents, is likely to suffer flood-related erosion damage.
- <u>"Flood-Related Erosion Area Management"</u> means the operation of an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for reducing flood-related erosion damage, including but not limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood-related erosion control works and floodplain management regulations.
- <u>"Floodway"</u> means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.
- <u>"Floor"</u> means the top surface of an enclosed area in a building (including basement), i.e., top of slab in concrete slab construction or top of wood flooring in wood frame construction. The term does not include the floor of a garage used solely for parking vehicles.
- <u>"Freeboard"</u> means a factor of safety usually expressed in feet above a flood level for purposes of floodplain management. "Freeboard" tends to compensate for the many unknown factors that could contribute to flood heights greater than the height calculated for a selected size flood and floodway conditions, such as wave action, blockage of bridge or culvert openings, and the hydrological effect of urbanization of the watershed.
- <u>"Functionally Dependent Use"</u> means a use which cannot perform its intended purpose unless it is located or carried out in close proximity to water. The term includes only docking facilities, port facilities that are necessary for the loading and unloading of cargo or passengers, and ship building and ship repair facilities, but does not include long-term storage or related manufacturing facilities.
- <u>"Highest Adjacent Grade"</u> means the highest natural elevation of the ground surface, prior to construction, adjacent to the proposed walls of a structure.

"Historic Structure" means any structure that is:

- (1) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the U.S. Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register;
- (2) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district;
- (3) Individually listed on the Tennessee inventory of historic places and determined as eligible by states with historic preservation programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior; or
- (4) Individually listed on the <u>Sumner</u> County, Tennessee inventory of historic places and determined as eligible by communities with historic preservation programs that have been certified either:

- (a) By the approved Tennessee program as determined by the Secretary of the Interior or
- (b) Directly by the Secretary of the Interior.
- <u>"Levee"</u> means a man-made structure, usually an earthen embankment, designed and constructed in accordance with sound engineering practices to contain, control or divert the flow of water so as to provide protection from temporary flooding.
- <u>"Levee System"</u> means a flood protection system which consists of a levee, or levees, and associated structures, such as closure and drainage devices, which are constructed and operated in accordance with sound engineering practices.
- "Lowest Floor" means the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, including a basement. An unfinished or flood resistant enclosure used solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage in an area other than a basement area is not considered a building's lowest floor; provided, that such enclosure is not built so as to render the structure in violation of the applicable non-elevation design requirements of this Resolution.
- <u>"Manufactured Home"</u> means a structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when attached to the required utilities. The term "Manufactured Home" does not include a "Recreational Vehicle".
- <u>"Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision"</u> means a parcel (or contiguous parcels) of land divided into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale.
- ${\hbox{{\it "Map"}}\over\hbox{(FIRM)}}$ means the Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM) or the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for a community issued by FEMA.
- <u>"Mean-Sea-Level"</u> means the average height of the sea for all stages of the tide. It is used as a reference for establishing various elevations within the floodplain. For the purposes of this Resolution, the term is synonymous with the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988, or other datum, to which Base Flood Elevations shown on a community's Flood Insurance Rate Map are referenced.
- "National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD)" means, as corrected in 1929, a vertical control used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.
- <u>"New Construction"</u> means any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the effective date of the initial floodplain management Resolution and includes any subsequent improvements to such structure.
- "New Manufactured Home Park or Subdivision" means a manufactured home park or subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is completed on or after the effective date of this resolution or the effective date of the initial floodplain management resolution and includes any subsequent improvements to such structure.
- "North American Vertical Datum (NAVD)" means, as corrected in 1988, a vertical control used as a reference for establishing varying elevations within the floodplain.

"100-Year Flood" see "Base Flood".

- <u>"Person"</u> includes any individual or group of individuals, corporation, partnership, association, or any other entity, including State and local governments and agencies.
- "Reasonably Safe from Flooding" means base flood waters will not inundate the land or damage structures to be removed from the Special Flood Hazard Area and that any subsurface waters related to the base flood will not damage existing or proposed structures.

"Recreational Vehicle" means a vehicle which is:

(1) Built on a single chassis;

MINUTE BOOK NINETEEN APRIL 16, 2012

- (2) Four hundred (400) square feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection;
- (3) Designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a light duty truck;
- (4) Designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use.
- "Regulatory Floodway" means the channel of a river or other watercourse and the adjacent land areas that must be reserved in order to discharge the base flood without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than a designated height.
- "Riverine" means relating to, formed by, or resembling a river (including tributaries), stream, brook, etc.
- "Special Flood Hazard Area" is the land in the floodplain within a community subject to a one (1) percent or greater chance of flooding in any given year. The area may be designated as Zone A, on the FHBM. After detailed ratemaking has been completed in preparation for publication of the FIRM, Zone A usually is refined into Zones A, AO, AH, A1-30, AE or A99.
- "Special Hazard Area" means an area having special flood, mudslide (i.e., mudflow) and/or flood-related erosion hazards, and shown on an FHBM or FIRM as Zone A, AO, A1-30, AE, A99, or AH.
- "Start of Construction" includes substantial improvement, and means the date the building permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement was within one hundred-eighty (180) days of the permit date. The actual start means either the first placement of permanent construction of a structure (including a manufactured home) on a site, such as the pouring of slabs or footings, the installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; and includes the placement of a manufactured home on a foundation. Permanent construction does not include initial land preparation, such as clearing, grading and filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds, not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the external dimensions of the building.
- <u>"State Coordinating Agency"</u> the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development's, Local Planning Assistance Office, as designated by the Governor of the State of Tennessee at the request of FEMA to assist in the implementation of the NFIP for the State.
- "Structure" for purposes of this Resolution, means a walled and roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above ground, as well as a manufactured home.
- <u>"Substantial Damage"</u> means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the damage occurred.
- <u>"Substantial Improvement"</u> means any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, alteration or other improvement of a structure in which the cost equals or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the market value of the structure before the "start of construction" of the initial improvement. This term includes structures which have incurred "substantial damage", regardless of the actual repair work performed. The market value of the structure should be (1) the appraised value of the structure prior to the start of the initial improvement, or (2) in the case of substantial damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage occurring.

The term does not, however, include either: (1) Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of State or local health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been pre-identified by the local code enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions and not solely triggered by an improvement or repair project or; (2) Any alteration of a "historic structure", provided that the alteration will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a "historic structure".

"Substantially Improved Existing Manufactured Home Parks or Subdivisions" is where the repair, reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of the streets, utilities and pads equals

or exceeds fifty (50) percent of the value of the streets, utilities and pads before the repair, reconstruction or improvement commenced.

<u>"Variance"</u> is a grant of relief from the requirements of this Resolution.

<u>"Violation"</u> means the failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the community's floodplain management regulations. A structure or other development without the elevation certificate, other certification, or other evidence of compliance required in this Resolution is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation is provided.

<u>"Water Surface Elevation"</u> means the height, in relation to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) of 1929, the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD) of 1988, or other datum, where specified, of floods of various magnitudes and frequencies in the floodplains of riverine areas.

3. **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

3.1 Application

This Resolution shall apply to all areas within the unincorporated area of Sumner County, Tennessee.

3.2 Basis for Establishing the Areas of Special Flood Hazard

The Areas of Special Flood Hazard identified on the Sumner County, Tennessee, as identified by FEMA, and in its Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Number(s) 47165CV001C, Volumes 1 and 2, dated, April 17, 2012 and Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), Community Panel Number(s) 470349: 25, 50, 75, 100, 125, 127, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 150, 175, 200, 225, 245, 257, 259, 260, 263, 264, 267, 269, 270, 280, 285, 288, 290, 291, 293, 295, 305, 310, 311, 312, 313, 314, 316, 317, 318, 319, 330, 335, 340, 345, 376, 377, 378, 379, 381, 382, 383, 384, 391, 392, 394, 401, 402, 403, 404, 406, 407, 408, 409, 411, 412, 413, 414, 416, 417, 418, 419, 426, 427, 428, 429, 431, 432, 433, 434, 436, 441, 442, 455, 460, 465, 466, 476, and 477, dated April 17, 2012, along with all supporting technical data, are adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this Resolution.

3.3. Requirement for Development Permit

A development permit shall be required in conformity with this Resolution prior to the commencement of any development activities.

3.4. Compliance

No land, structure or use shall hereafter be located, extended, converted or structurally altered without full compliance with the terms of this Resolution and other applicable regulations.

3.5. Abrogation and Greater Restrictions

This Resolution is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing easements, covenants or deed restrictions. However, where this Resolution conflicts or overlaps with another regulatory instrument, whichever imposes the more stringent restrictions shall prevail.

3.6 <u>Interpretation</u>

In the interpretation and application of this Resolution, all provisions shall be: (1) considered as minimum requirements; (2) liberally construed in favor of the governing body and; (3) deemed neither to limit nor repeal any other powers granted under Tennessee statutes.

3.7 Warning and Disclaimer of Liability

The degree of flood protection required by this Resolution is considered reasonable for regulatory purposes and is based on scientific and engineering considerations. Larger floods can and will occur on rare occasions. Flood heights may be increased by manmade or natural causes. This Resolution does not imply that land outside the Areas of Special Flood Hazard or uses permitted within such areas will be free from flooding or

flood damages. This Resolution shall not create liability on the part of Sumner County, Tennessee or by any officer or employee thereof for any flood damages that result from reliance on this Resolution or any administrative decision lawfully made hereunder.

3.8. Penalties for Violation

Violation of the provisions of this Resolution or failure to comply with any of its requirements, including violation of conditions and safeguards established in connection with grants of variance shall constitute a misdemeanor punishable as other misdemeanors as provided by law. Any person who violates this resolution or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, upon adjudication therefore, be fined as prescribed by Tennessee statutes, and in addition, shall pay all costs and expenses involved in the case. Each day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. Nothing herein contained shall prevent <u>Sumner</u> County, Tennessee from taking such other lawful actions to prevent or remedy any violation.

4. ADMINISTRATION

4.1 Designation of Resolution Administrator

The Sumner County Director of Construction and Development is hereby appointed as the Administrator to implement the provisions of this Resolution.

4.2. Permit Procedures

Application for a development permit shall be made to the Administrator on forms furnished by the community prior to any development activities. The development permit may include, but is not limited to the following: plans in duplicate drawn to scale and showing the nature, location, dimensions, and elevations of the area in question; existing or proposed structures, earthen fill placement, storage of materials or equipment, and drainage facilities. Specifically, the following information is required:

1. <u>Application Stage</u>

- a. Elevation in relation to mean-sea-level of the proposed lowest floor, including basement, of all buildings where Base Flood Elevations are available, or to certain height above the highest adjacent grade when applicable under this Resolution.
- b. Elevation in relation to mean-sea-level to which any nonresidential building will be floodproofed where Base Flood Elevations are available, or to certain height above the highest adjacent grade when applicable under this Resolution.
- c. A FEMA Floodproofing Certificate from a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect that the proposed nonresidential floodproofed building will meet the floodproofing criteria in Article V, Subsections A and B.
- d. Description of the extent to which any watercourse will be altered or relocated as a result of proposed development.

2. Construction Stage

Within AE Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is available, any lowest floor certification made relative to mean-sea-level shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of, a Tennessee registered land surveyor and certified by same. The Administrator shall record the elevation of the lowest floor on the development permit. When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential building, said certification shall be prepared by, or under the direct supervision of, a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect and certified by same.

Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is not available, the elevation of the lowest floor shall be determined as the measurement of the lowest floor of the building relative to the highest adjacent grade. The Administrator shall record the elevation of the lowest floor on the development permit. When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential building, said

certification shall be prepared by, or under the direct supervision of, a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect and certified by same.

For all new construction and substantial improvements, the permit holder shall provide to the Administrator an as-built certification of the lowest floor elevation or floodproofing level upon the completion of the lowest floor or floodproofing.

Any work undertaken prior to submission of the certification shall be at the permit holder's risk. The Administrator shall review the above-referenced certification data. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and prior to further work being allowed to proceed. Failure to submit the certification or failure to make said corrections required hereby, shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.

4.3 <u>Duties and Responsibilities of the Administrator</u>

Duties of the Administrator shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- 1. Review all development permits to assure that the permit requirements of this Resolution have been satisfied, and that proposed building sites will be reasonably safe from flooding.
- 2. Review proposed development to assure that all necessary permits have been received from those governmental agencies from which approval is required by Federal or State law, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334.
- 3. Notify adjacent communities and the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development, Local Planning Assistance Office, prior to any alteration or relocation of a watercourse and submit evidence of such notification to FEMA.
- 4. For any altered or relocated watercourse, submit engineering data/analysis within six (6) months to FEMA to ensure accuracy of community FIRM's through the Letter of Map Revision process.
- 5. Assure that the flood carrying capacity within an altered or relocated portion of any watercourse is maintained.
- 6. Record the elevation, in relation to mean-sea-level or the highest adjacent grade, where applicable, of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new and substantially improved buildings, in accordance with Article IV, Subsection B.
- 7. Record the actual elevation, in relation to mean-sea-level or the highest adjacent grade, where applicable to which the new and substantially improved buildings have been floodproofed, in accordance with Article IV, Subsection B.
- 8. When floodproofing is utilized for a nonresidential structure, obtain certification of design criteria from a Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect, in accordance with Article IV, Subsection B.
- 9. Where interpretation is needed as to the exact location of boundaries of the Areas of Special Flood Hazard (for example, where there appears to be a conflict between a mapped boundary and actual field conditions), make the necessary interpretation. Any person contesting the location of the boundary shall be given a reasonable opportunity to appeal the interpretation as provided in this Resolution.
- 10. When Base Flood Elevation data and floodway data have not been provided by FEMA, obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any Base Flood Elevation and floodway data available from a Federal, State, or other sources, including data developed as a result of these regulations, as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements, or other development in Zone A, on the <u>Sumner</u> County, Tennessee FIRM meet the requirements of this Resolution.
- 11. Maintain all records pertaining to the provisions of this Resolution in the office of the Administrator and shall be open for public inspection. Permits issued under the provisions of this Resolution shall be maintained in a separate file or marked for expedited retrieval within combined files.

5. PROVISIONS FOR FLOOD HAZARD REDUCTION

5.1 General Standards

In all areas of special flood hazard, the following provisions are required:

- 1. New construction and substantial improvements shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral movement of the structure;2. Manufactured homes shall be installed using methods and practices that minimize flood damage. They must be elevated and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and lateral movement. Methods of anchoring may include, but are not limited to, use of over-the-top or frame ties to ground anchors. This requirement is in addition to applicable State of Tennessee and local anchoring requirements for resisting wind forces.
- 3. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed with materials and utility equipment resistant to flood damage;
- 4. New construction and substantial improvements shall be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage;
- 5. All electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing, air conditioning equipment, and other service facilities shall be designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding;
- 6. New and replacement water supply systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the system;
- 7. New and replacement sanitary sewage systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and discharges from the systems into flood waters;
- 8. On-site waste disposal systems shall be located and constructed to avoid impairment to them or contamination from them during flooding;
- Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvements to a building that is in compliance with the provisions of this Resolution, shall meet the requirements of "new construction" as contained in this Resolution;
- 10. Any alteration, repair, reconstruction or improvements to a building that is not in compliance with the provision of this Resolution, shall be undertaken only if said non-conformity is not further extended or replaced;
- 11. All new construction and substantial improvement proposals shall provide copies of all necessary Federal and State permits, including Section 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act amendments of 1972, 33 U.S.C. 1334;
- 12. All subdivision proposals and other proposed new development proposals shall meet the standards of Article V, Subsection B;
- 13. When proposed new construction and substantial improvements are partially located in an area of special flood hazard, the entire structure shall meet the standards for new construction;
- 14. When proposed new construction and substantial improvements are located in multiple flood hazard risk zones or in a flood hazard risk zone with multiple Base Flood Elevations, the entire structure shall meet the standards for the most hazardous flood hazard risk zone and the highest Base Flood Elevation.5.2

Specific Standards

In all Areas of Special Flood Hazard, the following provisions, in addition to those set forth in Article V, Subsection A, are required:

1. Residential Structures

In AE Zones where Base Flood Elevation data is available, new construction and substantial improvement of any residential building (or manufactured home) shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to no lower than one (1) foot above the Base Flood Elevation. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: "Enclosures".

Within approximate A Zones where Base Flood Elevations have not been established and where alternative data is not available, the administrator shall require the lowest floor of a building to be elevated to a level of at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Article II). Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: "Enclosures"

2. Nonresidential Structures

In AE Zones, where Base Flood Elevation data is available, new construction and substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or nonresidential building, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated or floodproofed to no lower than one (1) foot above the level of the Base Flood Elevation. Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: "Enclosures"

In approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been established and where alternative data is not available, new construction and substantial improvement of any commercial, industrial, or nonresidential building, shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated or floodproofed to no lower than three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Article II). Should solid foundation perimeter walls be used to elevate a structure, openings sufficient to facilitate equalization of flood hydrostatic forces on both sides of exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of this section: "Enclosures"

Nonresidential buildings located in all A Zones may be floodproofed, in lieu of being elevated, provided that all areas of the building below the required elevation are watertight, with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water, and are built with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. A Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions above, and shall provide such certification to the Administrator as set forth in Article IV, Subsection B.3.

Enclosures

All new construction and substantial improvements that include fully enclosed areas formed by foundation and other exterior walls below the lowest floor that are subject to flooding, shall be designed to preclude finished living space and designed to allow for the entry and exit of flood waters to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls.

- a. Designs for complying with this requirement must either be certified by a Tennessee professional engineer or architect or meet or exceed the following minimum criteria.
 - Provide a minimum of two (2) openings having a total net area of not less than one (1) square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;
 - ii. The bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot above the finished grade;
 - iii. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions.

- b. The enclosed area shall be the minimum necessary to allow for parking of vehicles, storage or building access.
- c. The interior portion of such enclosed area shall not be finished or partitioned into separate rooms in such a way as to impede the movement of floodwaters and all such partitions shall comply with the provisions of Article V, Subsection B.

4. Standards for Manufactured Homes and Recreational Vehicles

- a. All manufactured homes placed, or substantially improved, on: (1) individual lots or parcels, (2) in expansions to existing manufactured home parks or subdivisions, or (3) in new or substantially improved manufactured home parks or subdivisions, must meet all the requirements of new construction.
- b. All manufactured homes placed or substantially improved in an existing manufactured home park or subdivision must be elevated so that either:
 - In AE Zones, with Base Flood Elevations, the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated on a permanent foundation to no lower than one (1) foot above the level of the Base Flood Elevation or
 - ii. In approximate A Zones, without Base Flood Elevations, the manufactured home chassis is elevated and supported by reinforced piers (or other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength) that are at least three (3) feet in height above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Article II).
- c. Any manufactured home, which has incurred "substantial damage" as the result of a flood, must meet the standards of Article V, Subsections A and B
- d. All manufactured homes must be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse and lateral movement.
- e. All recreational vehicles placed in an identified Special Flood Hazard Area must either:
 - i. Be on the site for fewer than one hundred-eighty (180) consecutive days;
 - ii Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle is ready for highway use if it is licensed, on its wheels or jacking system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently attached structures or additions), or;
 - iii. The recreational vehicle must meet all the requirements for new construction.

5. <u>Standards for Subdivisions and Other Proposed New Development Proposals</u>

Subdivisions and other proposed new developments, including manufactured home parks, shall be reviewed to determine whether such proposals will be reasonably safe from flooding.

- a. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall be consistent with the need to minimize flood damage.
- b. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall have public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical and water systems located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.
- c. All subdivision and other proposed new development proposals shall have adequate drainage provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

d. In all approximate A Zones require that all new subdivision proposals and other proposed developments (including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions) greater than fifty (50) lots or five (5) acres, whichever is the lesser, include within such proposals Base Flood Elevation data (See Article V, Subsection E).

5.3 <u>Standards for Special Flood Hazard Areas with Established Base Flood Elevations and with Floodways Designated</u>

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Subsection B, are areas designated as floodways. A floodway may be an extremely hazardous area due to the velocity of floodwaters, debris or erosion potential. In addition, the area must remain free of encroachment in order to allow for the discharge of the base flood without increased flood heights and velocities. Therefore, the following provisions shall apply:

- increased flood heights and velocities. Therefore, the following provisions shall apply:

 1. Encroachments are prohibited, including earthen fill material, new construction, substantial improvements or other development within the regulatory floodway. Development may be permitted however, provided it is demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practices that the cumulative effect of the proposed encroachments or new development shall not result in any increase in the water surface elevation of the Base Flood Elevation, velocities, or floodway widths during the occurrence of a base flood discharge at any point within the community. A Tennessee registered professional engineer must provide supporting technical data, using the same methodologies as in the effective Flood Insurance Study for Sumner County, Tennessee and certification, thereof.
- 2. New construction and substantial improvements of buildings, where permitted, shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Subsections A and B.

5.4 <u>Standards for Areas of Special Flood Hazard Zones AE with Established Base Flood Elevations but Without Floodways Designated</u>

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Subsection B, where streams exist with base flood data provided but where no floodways have been designated (Zones AE), the following provisions apply:

- 1. No encroachments, including fill material, new construction and substantial improvements shall be located within areas of special flood hazard, unless certification by a Tennessee registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the community. The engineering certification should be supported by technical data that conforms to standard hydraulic engineering principles.
- New construction and substantial improvements of buildings, where permitted, shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Subsections A and B.

5.5. <u>Standards for Streams Without Established Base Flood Elevations and Floodways (A Zones)</u>

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Subsection B, where streams exist, but no base flood data has been provided and where a Floodway has not been delineated, the following provisions shall apply:

- 1. The Administrator shall obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any Base Flood Elevation and floodway data available from any Federal, State, or other sources, including data developed as a result of these regulations (see 2, below), as criteria for requiring that new construction, substantial improvements, or other development in approximate A Zones meet the requirements of Article V, Subsections A and B.
- 2. Require that all new subdivision proposals and other proposed developments (including proposals for manufactured home parks and subdivisions) greater than

- fifty (50) lots or five (5) acres, whichever is the lesser, include within such proposals Base Flood Elevation data.
- 3. Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been established and where such data is not available from other sources, require the lowest floor of a building to be elevated or floodproofed to a level of at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade (as defined in Article II). All applicable data including elevations or floodproofing certifications shall be recorded as set forth in Article IV, Subsection B. Openings sufficient to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with the standards of Article V, Subsection B.
- Within approximate A Zones, where Base Flood Elevations have not been established and where such data is not available from other sources, no encroachments, including structures or fill material, shall be located within an area equal to the width of the stream or twenty (20) feet, whichever is greater, measured from the top of the stream bank, unless certification by a Tennessee registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within Sumner County, Tennessee. The engineering certification should be supported by technical data that conforms to standard hydraulic engineering principles.
- 5. New construction and substantial improvements of buildings, where permitted, shall comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Article V, Subsections A and B. Within approximate A Zones, require that those subsections of Article V, Subsection B, dealing with the alteration or relocation of a watercourse, assuring watercourse carrying capacities are maintained and manufactured homes provisions are complied with as required.

5.6 <u>Standards for Areas of Shallow Flooding (AO and AH Zones)</u>

Located within the Special Flood Hazard Areas established in Article III, Subsection B, are areas designated as shallow flooding areas. These areas have special flood hazards associated with base flood depths of one to three feet (1'-3') where a clearly defined channel does not exist and where the path of flooding is unpredictable and indeterminate; therefore, the following provisions, in addition to those set forth in Article V, Subsections A and B, apply:

- 1. All new construction and substantial improvements of residential and nonresidential buildings shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to at least one (1) foot above as many feet as the depth number specified on the FIRM's, in feet, above the highest adjacent grade. If no flood depth number is specified on the FIRM, the lowest floor, including basement, shall be elevated to at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade. Openings sufficient to facilitate automatic equalization of hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls shall be provided in accordance with standards of Article V, Subsection B.
- 2. All new construction and substantial improvements of nonresidential buildings may be floodproofed in lieu of elevation. The structure together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities must be floodproofed and designed watertight to be completely floodproofed to at least one (1) foot above the flood depth number specified on the FIRM, with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural components having the capability of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and the effects of buoyancy. If no depth number is specified on the FIRM, the structure shall be floodproofed to at least three (3) feet above the highest adjacent grade. A Tennessee registered professional engineer or architect shall certify that the design and methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions of this Resolution and shall provide such certification to the Administrator as set forth above and as required in accordance with Article IV, Subsection B.
- 3. Adequate drainage paths shall be provided around slopes to guide floodwaters around and away from proposed structures.

5.7 <u>Standards for Areas Protected by Flood Protection System (A-99 Zones)</u>

Located within the Areas of Special Flood Hazard established in Article III, Subsection B, are areas of the 100-year floodplain protected by a flood protection system but where Base Flood Elevations have not been determined. Within these areas (A-99 Zones) all provisions of Article IV and Article V, shall apply.

5.8 Standards for Unmapped Streams

Located within Sumner County, Tennessee, are unmapped streams where areas of special flood hazard are neither indicated nor identified. Adjacent to such streams, the following provisions shall apply:

- No encroachments including fill material or other development including structures shall be located within an area of at least equal to twice the width of the stream, measured from the top of each stream bank, unless certification by a Tennessee registered professional engineer is provided demonstrating that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined with all other existing and anticipated development, will not increase the water surface elevation of the base flood more than one (1) foot at any point within the locality.
- 2. When a new flood hazard risk zone, and Base Flood Elevation and floodway data is available, new construction and substantial improvements shall meet the standards established in accordance with Articles IV and V.

6. VARIANCE PROCEDURES

6.1 Regional Board of Zoning Appeals

1. <u>Authority</u>

The Sumner County, Tennessee Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear and decide appeals and requests for variances from the requirements of this Resolution.

2. Procedure

Meetings of the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall be held at such times, as the Board shall determine. All meetings of the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall be open to the public. The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall adopt rules of procedure and shall keep records of applications and actions thereof, which shall be a public record. Compensation of the members of the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall be set by the Legislative Body.

3. Appeals: How Taken

An appeal to the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals may be taken by any person, firm or corporation aggrieved or by any governmental officer, department, or bureau affected by any decision of the Administrator based in whole or in part upon the provisions of this Resolution. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals a notice of appeal, specifying the grounds thereof. In all cases where an appeal is made by a property owner or other interested party, a fee of \$17.00 dollars for the cost of publishing a notice of such hearings shall be paid by the appellant. The Administrator shall transmit to the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals all papers constituting the record upon which the appeal action was taken. The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal, give public notice thereof, as well as due notice to parties in interest and decide the same within a reasonable time which shall not be more than ten (10) days from the date of the hearing. At the hearing, any person or party may appear and be heard in person or by agent or by attorney.

4. Powers

The Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following powers:

a. Administrative Review

To hear and decide appeals where it is alleged by the applicant that there is error in any order, requirement, permit, decision, determination, or

refusal made by the Administrator or other administrative official in carrying out or enforcement of any provisions of this Resolution.

b. <u>Variance Procedures</u>

In the case of a request for a variance the following shall apply:

- i. The Sumner County, Tennessee Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear and decide appeals and requests for variances from the requirements of this Resolution.
- ii. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures as defined, herein, upon a determination that the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure and the variance is the minimum necessary deviation from the requirements of this Resolution to preserve the historic character and design of the structure.
- iii. In passing upon such applications, the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals shall consider all technical evaluations, all relevant factors, all standards specified in other sections of this Resolution, and:
 - a) The danger that materials may be swept onto other property to the injury of others;b) The danger to life and property due to flooding or erosion;
 - c) The susceptibility of the proposed facility and its contents to flood damage;
 - d) The importance of the services provided by the proposed facility to the community;
 - e) The necessity of the facility to a waterfront location, in the case of a functionally dependent use;
 - f) The availability of alternative locations, not subject to flooding or erosion damage, for the proposed use;
 - g) The relationship of the proposed use to the comprehensive plan and floodplain management program for that area;
 - h) The safety of access to the property in times of flood for ordinary and emergency vehicles;
 - The expected heights, velocity, duration, rate of rise and sediment transport of the flood waters and the effects of wave action, if applicable, expected at the site;
 - j) The costs of providing governmental services during and after flood conditions including maintenance and repair of public utilities and facilities such as sewer, gas, electrical, water systems, and streets and bridges.
- iv. Upon consideration of the factors listed above, and the purposes of this Resolution, the Regional Board of Zoning Appeals may attach such conditions to the granting of variances, as it deems necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.
- v. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

6.2 Conditions for Variances

 Variances shall be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum relief necessary, considering the flood hazard and the factors listed in Article VI, Subsection A.

- 2. Variances shall only be issued upon: a showing of good and sufficient cause, a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship; or a determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or Resolutions.3. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the Base Flood Elevation will result in increased premium rates for flood insurance (as high as \$25 for \$100) coverage, and that such construction below the Base Flood Elevation increases risks to life and property.
- 4. The Administrator shall maintain the records of all appeal actions and report any variances to FEMA upon request.

7. <u>LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS</u>

A. Conflict with Other Resolutions

In case of conflict between this Resolution or any part thereof, and the whole or part of any existing or future Resolution of Sumner County, Tennessee, the most restrictive shall in all cases apply.

B. <u>Severability</u>

If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this Resolution shall be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any other section, clause, provision, or portion of this Resolution which is not of itself invalid or unconstitutional.

C. <u>Effective Date</u>

This Resolution shall become effective immediately after its passage, the public welfare demanding it.

Approved and adopted by the Sumner County, Tennessee, County Executive and Legislative Body.

Attest: County Clerk April 16, 2012	unty Executive of Sumner County, Tennessee
County Clerk	
April 16, 2012	
	March 28, 2012
Date of Public Hearing	Date of Publication of Caption and Summary
	s, seconded by Commissioner Taylor, the on 1204-01 by unanimous voice vote of the body.

Commissioner Stone introduced the following resolution and read it into the record:

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE MIDDLE SCHOOL GIRLS BUCCANEERS SOFTBALL TEAM

WHEREAS, the Middle School Girls Buccaneers Softball Team, led by Coaches John Decker, Eric Chaffin, Kendall Brent and Ronnie King ended their season as the County Middle School Softball Champions; and

WHEREAS, the Middle School Girls Buccaneers Softball team: Ashton Hayden, Savannah Lewis, Lacy Marlin, Ashley Raymont, Hannah Rivera, Abbie Vaughn, McCall Decker, Hannah Marlar, Layce Milliken, Shelby Bell, Kaylor Chaffin, Natalie Lankster, Hayden Moore and Maggie Sutton played with pride and spirit and through their diligent efforts have brought honor to themselves and Sumner County by their outstanding performance and dedicated efforts; and

WHEREAS, the coaches, the manager and the players have exhibited great sportsmanship and hard work and through their efforts have been an inspiration to others.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby congratulate the coaches and the entire Middle School Girls Buccaneers Softball Team for their outstanding season; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is to be spread on the minutes of this body and the Clerk is to provide a copy of this resolution to coaches and the Middle School Girls Buccaneers Softball Team.

Upon motion of Commissioner Stone, seconded by Commissioner LeMarbre, the Commission approved the resolution by unanimous voice vote of the body.

Commissioner LeMarbre introduced the following resolution and read it into the record:

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE BEECH HIGH SCHOOL MOCK TRAIL TEAM

WHEREAS, the Beech High School Mock Trial team won the 2012 State Championship marking the first time in school history that a Mock Trial team secured back-to-back District Championships and representing the Sixth District at the state level three out of the last four years (2009, 2011 and 2012); and

WHEREAS, the Beech High School Mock Trial team include: Colin Bumbarner, Bethany Carol, Courtney Craig, Avery Field, Margaret Frank, Catie Hicks, Emily Higgins, Allie Jones, Miles Malbrough, Emma Mills, Ryan Shannon, Tanner Thurman and Caroline Yon who all are to be commended for their diligent effort, hard work and accomplishments brought honor not only to themselves but to their school and this country; and

WHEREAS, team member Miles Malbrough was name Runner-up Best Plaintiff Attorney and awarded the prestigious Bryce Ruth Award, given to the

student who best represents the Spirit of Mock Trial Competition and Margaret Frank was name Runner-up Best Defense Attorney.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby congratulate the Beech High School Mock Trial Team and its attorney coaches and faculty advisors for their outstanding achievements; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution is to be spread on the minutes of this body and the Clerk is to furnish a copy of this resolution to the Beech High School Mock Trial team.

Upon motion of Commissioner LeMarbre, seconded by Commissioner Moser, the Commission approved the resolution by unanimous voice vote of the body.

Chairman Hyde noted that a certificate of recognition honoring Brenda Savage would be moved to the May agenda.

Commissioner Skidmore introduced the following resolution:

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE HENDERSONVILLE CHRISTIAN ACADEMY VARSITY BASKETBALL TEAM

WHEREAS, the Hendersonville Christian Academy Varsity basketball team led by Coach John Taylor and his outstanding coaching staff won its second consecutive Tennessee Athletic Association of Christian Schools State Championship as well as the Tennessee Athletic Association of Christian Schools West Region Championship; and

WHEREAS, Ethan Fields was named the Most Valuable Player and the all-state players were Devin Humphress, Mack Keller and Zac Musgrave along with the other members of the team: Cole Hughes, Peyton Segura, Tyler Putty, Jacob Courtright, Miguel Rodriguez, Slater Stovall, Seth Thornton, Dillion Musgrave, Justin Courtright and Christian Olmedilla all aided in this championship season; and

WHEREAS, the Hendersonville Christian Academy Varsity basketball team played with pride and spirit and through their diligent efforts have brought honor to themselves, their school and Sumner County by their outstanding performance and dedicated efforts; and

WHEREAS, the coaches, the manager and the players have exhibited diligent effort and hard work and through their efforts have been an inspiration to others.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby congratulate and commend the Hendersonville Christian Academy Varsity basketball team and coaches for their award winning, record-breaking season; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is to be spread on the minutes of this body and the Clerk is to provide a copy of this resolution to the Hendersonville Christian Academy Varsity basketball team and Coach John Taylor.

Upon motion of Commissioner Skidmore, seconded by Commissioner LeMarbre, the Commission approved the resolution by unanimous voice vote of the body.

Commissioner Skidmore introduced the following resolution:

A RESOLUTION HONORING MR. ETHAN FIELDS

WHEREAS, Mr. Ethan Fields, a senior and a basketball player for the Hendersonville Christian Academy Crusaders basketball team helped guide his school team to back to back state tournament championships and for his efforts was named the Most Valuable Player of 2012; and

WHEREAS, Ethan has demonstrated great pride as a member of the Hendersonville Christian Academy Crusaders basketball team and for his efforts will be remembered as a part of the history of Crusader sports; and

WHEREAS, Ethan played with pride and dignity and through his diligent efforts has demonstrated the benefits of hard work and dedication and brought honor to himself, his school and county by his outstanding, record-breaking season.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby congratulate and commends Mr. Ethan Fields for his accomplishments.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is to be spread on the minutes of this body and the Clerk is to provide a copy of this resolution to Mr. Ethan Fields.

Upon motion of Commissioner Skidmore, seconded by Commissioner LeMarbre, the Commission approved the resolution by unanimous voice vote of the body.

County Executive Anthony Holt introduced the following resolution and read it into the record:

A RESOLUTION HONORING THE GALLATIN LIONS CLUB

WHEREAS, the Gallatin Lions Club formed on June 25, 1937, will celebrate its 75th Anniversary on June 25, 2012; and

WHEREAS, the Gallatin Lions Club is the fifth largest Lions Club out of 211 clubs in the State of Tennessee with 84 members; and

WHEREAS, the Gallatin Lions Club has furnished eye exams and eyeglasses for the needy, screens elementary school children in the Gallatin area for potential vision problems and financially supports many other charitable groups in the area; and

WHEREAS, the Gallatin Lions Club members well represent themselves through their diligence and effort and in so doing, have been an inspiration to other clubs throughout this county and has brought honor to themselves and Sumner County by their performance and dedication to many charitable endeavors.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby congratulate and commend the Gallatin Lions Club for their seventy-five years of service; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution is to be spread on the minutes of this body and the Clerk is to furnish a copy of this resolution to the Gallatin Lions Club.

Upon motion of Commissioner Goode, seconded by Commissioner Brown Strong, the Commission approved the resolution by unanimous voice vote of the body.

CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner Satterfield moved, seconded by Commissioner Akins, to approve the items on the Consent Agenda.

1204-10 A RESOLUTION DECLARING VARIOUS ITEMS FROM THE HENDERSONVILLE LIBRARY AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL OR SALE OF SAME PURSUANT TO EXISITING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012 that this body does hereby declare the items from the Hendersonville Library as surplus as shown on the attachments; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the disposal or sale of the same is authorized pursuant to existing policies and procedures.

1204-11 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A REFRIGERATOR FROM THE REGISTER OF DEEDS OFFICE AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL OR SALE OF SAME PURSUANT TO EXISITING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012 that this body does hereby declare a Refrigerator from the Register of Deeds office as surplus as shown on the attachment herewith; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the disposal or sale of the same is authorized pursuant to existing policies and procedures.

1204-12 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$459.99 AS PASS-THROUGH FUNDS TO PORTLAND LIBRARY FROM DONATIONS TO LIBRARY BOOK EXPENSE

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby appropriates \$459.99 as pass-through funds to Portland Library from donations to library book expense as shown on the attachment herewith.

1204-13 A RESOLUTION APPROVING TRANSFERS TO THE SUMNER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby approve the transfers to the Sumner County Board of Education General Purpose School Fund on the attachments herewith.

1204-14 A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING THE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE FEDERAL PROJECTS SCHOOL FUND

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body adjusts the appropriating funds for the Board of Education of the Federal Projects School Fund as shown on the attachment herewith.

1204-15 A RESOLUTION APPROVING TRANSFERS TO THE SUMNER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FEDERAL PROJECT FUNDS AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED SCHEDULE

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby approve the transfers to the Sumner County Board of Education Federal Project Funds as shown on the attachments herewith.

1204-16 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$8,612.00 FROM COUNTY GENERAL FUND BALANCE TO SALARY LINE ITEM FOR THE JUDICIAL MAGISTRATES

BE IT RESOLVED that the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby appropriates \$8,612.00 from County General Fund Balance to salary line item for the Judicial Magistrates as shown on the attachment herewith.

1204-17 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$2,500.00 IN PASS-THROUGH FUNDS FROM SNAP GRANT TO ARCHIVES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby appropriating \$2,500.00 in pass-through funds from Snap Grant to Archives as shown on the attachment herewith.

1204-18 A RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE TRUSTEE'S OFFICE A CREDIT IN THE FINAL SETTLEMENT OF THE 2010 PROPERTY TAX ROLL TOTALING \$398,166.28 DUE TO CHANGES OF ERRORS AND RELEASES

WHEREAS, Section 5-5-124, of the Tennessee Code Annotated, allows the Trustee of Sumner County, Tennessee, to obtain credit in final settlement of the 2010 property tax roll totaling \$398,166.28; and

WHEREAS, this amount represents changes due to errors and releases made by the Tax Assessor of Sumner County, Tennessee, State Board of Equalization, and Assessment Appeal Commission;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby allow the Trustee of Sumner County, Tennessee, a credit in the final settlement of the 2010 property tax roll totaling \$398,166.28 due to changes of errors and releases (a list of which is attached).

1204-19 A RESOLUTION FOR 2010 PROPERTY TAX ROLL PICK-UPS SETTLEMENT

WHEREAS, Section 5-5-124, of the Tennessee Code Annotated, allows the Trustee of Sumner County, Tennessee to obtain credit in final settlement of the 2010 property tax roll totaling \$425,420.89; and

WHEREAS, this amount represents changes due to pick-ups added by the Tax Assessor of Sumner County, Tennessee, State Board of Equalization, and Assessment Appeal Commission.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby allow the Trustee of Sumner County, Tennessee, a credit in the final settlement of the 2010 property tax roll totaling \$425,420.89 due to pick-ups added.

1204-20 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF 304 WEST GRAY STREET FOR REDUCED DELINQUENT TAXES IN ORDER TO RETURN THE PARCEL TO THE TAX ROLLS

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby authorizes the sale of 304 West Gray Street for reduced delinquent taxes in order to return the parcel to the tax rolls; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the city of Gallatin must also approve this transfer prior to completion of the transaction; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this transfer is made for the public good.

1204-21 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS FOR THE SCAAP GRANT OF THE OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby authorizes transfers of funds for the SCAAP Grant of the Office of the Sheriff as shown on the attachment herewith.

Tax Refunds

•	Bethel Primitive Baptist Church	\$	46.91
•	Terri Fricon	\$	690.30
•	G. S. Steel	\$	424.11
•	Harlan M. etux Marjorie L. Holcomb	\$1	,002.32

The electronic voted was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ
Brown Stron	gΥ	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ
Pospisil	Υ				

1204-CONSENT Yes: 22 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:25 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolutions on the Consent Agenda approved by the body on the first and final reading.

REPORT FROM COUNTY OFFICIALS

County Officials filed the following reports: County Investments, County General Fund, County Debt Service Fund, County Highway Fund, County Capital Outlay Fund, School General Purpose Fund, School Federal Projects Fund, School Food Service Fund,

MINUTE BOOK NINETEEN APRIL 16, 2012

Employee Health Insurance Trust Fund, Employee Dental Insurance Trust Fund, Casualty Insurance Trust Fund, County Trustee Funds, Special Reports: County Dental Insurance Claim Payments, County Health Insurance Claim Payments, County Property Tax Collections, County EMS Billing/Collections/Balances, County Sales Tax Collections, County Wheel Tax Collections, County Tax Rates/Property Values and County School Loan Program Rates. Approval of the filing of these records does not certify to the accuracy of the documents.

Chairman Hyde introduced the following resolution:

1204-NOT

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS AND PERSONAL SURETY GUARANTORS

WHEREAS, according to the law of the State of Tennessee, an individual must apply for the office of notary public in the county of residence, or of their principal place of business; and

WHEREAS, state statute requires personal sureties making bonds for Notaries publics to be approved by the Sumner County Commission; and

WHEREAS, said applicant must be approved by the County Commission assembled; and

WHEREAS, Bill Kemp, Sumner County Clerk, has certified according to the records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled "SUMNER COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS and SURETY GUARANTORS" have duly applied for the positions so sought; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER PASSAGE.

Notaries to be elected April 16, 2012

MYRA ELAINE AGEE JAMES O BLAYLOCK SANDRA G CARNEY ASHLEY GEORGE COOLEY BILL M CRAVEN JR JANICE C DRAPER JENNIFER L EASTMAN AMANDA GOSNELL YVETTE GREGORY **GARY A HAIN** JEANNIE M ISBELL TINA M KIZER ERIKA LOVE KOLECKI DAVID B LONDON **BRIAN R LOTT** VALERIE MATTHEWS NELLIE MCCLAIN

PERSONAL SURETY RAY WHITLEY RICHARD A TOMPKINS

LISA MEADOR KIMBERLY J MORRIS STEPHANIE R MULLINS **MELISSA PORTER HUMBERTO SAMPOGNA DEBORAH L SEARCY** DANIEL L SMITH KIMBERLY SNYDER **AMANDA STILL DIANE STINSON** ANN G. TALBERT STEPHANIE TERRY **BETH TUCKER** CHRISTY WALKER SHIRLEY WASHINGTON NANCY JO WHIPPLE ROSEMARY MCCORKLE

MINUTE BOOK NINETEEN APRIL 16, 2012

Upon motion of Commissioner Frank Freels, seconded by Commissioner Ring, voting was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ
Brown Strong	Υ	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Α	Guthrie	Υ
Pospisil	Υ				

1204-NOTARY Yes: 21 No: 0 Abs: 1 07:25 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the election of Notaries Public by the body.

Clerk Kemp read correspondence from the family of Merrol Hyde thanking commissioners for their plants, cards and telephone calls during Chairman Hyde's illness.

Chairman Hyde recognized Commissioner Graves who thanked the Commission for their expressions of sympathy during his time of loss.

COMMITTEE ON COMMITTEES

Commissioner Stone announced re-appointments to the Board of Equalization of the currently serving, commission-appointed members: Terry Nichols, James Ramsey, and Richard Cummings

Upon motion of Commissioner Stone, seconded by Commissioner Frank Freels, the Commission approved the re-appointment of Mr. Nichols, Mr. Ramsey and Mr. Cummings to the Board of Equalization.

Chairman Stone noted the following appointments for next month:

Health Board (4 year terms):

Dr. Randall Collins (Veterinarian), Ferrell Haile (Pharmacist) Jan Alexander (Registered Nurse)

Solid Waste Board (6 year terms)

Ragan Hall (County)
Jo Skidmore (County)
Joyce Hoyle (Gallatin)

HIGHWAY COMMISSION

There was no report from the Highway Commission.

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

Commissioner Decker stated that the matters taken up by the Education Committee were under the Budget Committee report.

GENERAL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

There was no report from the General Operations Committee.

EMERGENCY SERVICES COMMITTEE

There was no report from the Emergency Services Committee.

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

There was no report from the Public Services Committee.

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE

Commissioner Pospisil introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Stone seconded the motion.

1204-02 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING TDOT CONTRACT FOR NEW ROAD

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby accepts the contract with TDOT for a new road from Kentucky as shown on the attachment herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Geminden	Υ	Graves	Υ
F. Freels	Υ	Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ
Ring	Υ	Brown Stron	g Y	Vaughn	Υ
LeMarbre	Υ	Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ
Hyde	Υ	Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ
Skidmore	Υ	P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ
Guthrie	Υ	Pospisil	Υ		

1204-02 Yes: 20 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:29 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

Commissioner Pospisil introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Matthews seconded the motion.

1204-03 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE REVIEW OF THE JUDICIAL MAGISTRATE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the 2011 annual review of the Sumner County Judicial Magistrate program was held on March 19th, 2012, before this body; and

WHEREAS, after the report was made, no public comment was expressed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby accept the review of the Judicial Magistrate program for the 2011 calendar year.

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ
Brown Strong	gΥ	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ
Pospisil	Υ				

1204-03 Yes: 22 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:30 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

RULES AND PROCEDURES

There was no report from the Rules and Procedures Committee.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

There was no report from the Financial Management Committee.

BUDGET COMMITTEE

Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Decker seconded the motion.

1204-04 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$466,051.00 FROM THE CAPITAL PROJECTS LOCAL FUNDING TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR PORTLAND EAST MIDDLE SCHOOL AND WHITTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PAVING PROJECTS

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby appropriates \$466,051.00 from the capital projects local funding to the Board of Education for Portland East Middle School and Whitten Elementary School paving projects as shown on the attachments herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins Y Taylor Y Geminden Y

MINUTE BOOK NINETEEN APRIL 16, 2012

Graves	Υ	F. Freels	Υ	Matthews	Υ
Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ	Brown Strong	Υ
Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ	Moser	Υ
Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ	Kimbrough	Υ
Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ	P. Freels	Υ
Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ	Pospisil	Υ

1204-04 Yes: 21 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:33 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Taylor seconded the motion.

1204-05 A RESOLUTION APPROVING A HVAC REBATE OF \$40,000.00 TO INCREASE EDUCATION INTENT TO FUND FOR THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body does hereby approve the HVAC rebate of \$40,000.00 to increase education intent to fund for the Board of Education as shown on the attachment herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ
Brown Strong	gΥ	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ
Pospisil	Υ				

1204-05 Yes: 22 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:34 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Kimbrough seconded the motion.

1204-06 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$132,000.00 TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS LOCAL FUNDING INTENT TO FUND FOR HEAT PUMP REPLACEMENT AT INDIAN LAKE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body hereby appropriates \$132,000.00 to the Board of Education from the capital projects local funding intent to fund for Heat Pump Replacement at Indian Lake Elementary School as shown on the attachment herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ
Brown Stron	ıg Y	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ
Pospisil	Υ				

1204-06 Yes: 22 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:35 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body. Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Frank Freels seconded the motion.

1204-07 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$45,937.00 TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR ARCHITECT FEES FROM THE CAPITAL PROJECTS LOCAL FUNDING

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body appropriates \$45,937.00 to the Board of Education for Architect fees from the capital projects local funding as shown on the attachment herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Ν
Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Ν	Moser	Υ
Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ	Kimbrough	Υ
Goode	Ν	Skidmore	Υ	P. Freels	Υ
Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Ν	Pospisil	Υ

1204-07 Yes: 17 No: 4 Abs: 0 07:36 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Graves seconded the motion.

1204-08 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$645,685.00 AS PASS-THROUGH FUNDS FROM VARIOUS HIGHWAY BUDGET LINE ITEMS FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012 that this body hereby appropriates \$645,685.00 as pass-through funds from various Highway Budget line items for the Highway Department as shown on attachment herewith.

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Taylor

Akins

Υ

Geminden

Υ

Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ	
Matthews	Υ	Harris	Υ	Ring	Υ	
Brown Strong	ΙΥ	Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ	
Moser	Υ	Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ	
Kimbrough	Υ	Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ	
P. Freels	Υ	Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ	
Pospisil	Υ					
-						
1204-08	Yes:	22	No: 0	Abs: 0	07:37 PM	
Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.						

Shamman Tiyas assiarsa ans reservation approved by the beay.

Commissioner Moser introduced the following resolution and moved for approval; Commissioner Geminden seconded the motion.

1204-09 A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING \$160,925.00 TO BOARD OF EDUCATION AS PASS-THROUGH FUNDS FOR THE GENERAL PURPOSE SCHOOL FUND

BE IT RESOLVED by the Sumner County Board of County Commissioners meeting in regular session on this the 16th day of April, 2012, that this body appropriates \$160,925.00 to the Board of Education as pass-through funds for the General Purpose School Fund as shown on the attachments herewith

The electronic vote was recorded in the following manner:

Akins	Υ	Taylor	Υ	Geminden	Υ
Graves	Υ	Satterfield	Υ	F. Freels	Υ
Matthews	Υ	Ring	Υ	Brown Strong	Υ
Vaughn	Υ	LeMarbre	Υ	Moser	Υ
Decker	Υ	Hyde	Υ	Kimbrough	Υ
Goode	Υ	Skidmore	Υ	P. Freels	Υ
Stone	Υ	Guthrie	Υ	Pospisil	Υ

1204-09 Yes: 21 No: 0 Abs: 0 07:38 PM

Chairman Hyde declared the resolution approved by the body.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Hyde declared the Commission meeting adjourned at 7:38 p.m. upon motion of Commissioner Akins and seconded by Commissioner Harris.

BILL KEMP, CLERK	MERROL HYDE, CHAIRMAN		
Prepared by Maria A. Savage Approved on			